
 

 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 p.m.  

Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
 

 

  MAYOR        CITY CLERK 
     Bryce Ward 888-4444      Kathy Weber, MMC  488-8583  

 

  COUNCIL MEMBERS        
Michael Welch-  Mayor Pro Tem    488-5834 

Thomas McGhee- Deputy Mayor Pro Tem        455-0010 

Preston Smith – Alt. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 488-8824 

Elizabeth Holm     488-6125 

Sharron Hunter       978-5591 

Kevin McCarthy    590-0800 

   

  
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

  

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag   
 

3. Invocation   
  

4. Approval of the Agenda 

 

5. Approval of the Minutes  

  

6. Communications from the Mayor 

 

7.     Council Member Questions of the Mayor 

 

8.     Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City Clerk  

   

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

Alaska 
 

 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, June 1, 2015 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

9.     Ongoing Projects Report 
 

10.   Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

11.   Old Business 

a.   Ordinance 15-06, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 4, Revenue and 

Finance, Section 20.010, Sale of City Property. 

 

12.    New Business 

a.   Approval of Strategic Planning Contract with Agnew:Beck 

 

b.  Ordinance 15-07, An Ordinance Of The City Of North Pole, Alaska To Amend Title 2, Personnel 

System, Chapter 36, Section.480 Insurance And Disability Benefits. 

 

c.   Ordinance 15-08, An Ordinance of the North Pole City Council introducing Chapter 5.10 Marijuana, 

Section .010 Prohibiting Retail Sales   

 

d.  Ordinance 15-09, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend the 2015 budget to authorize 

purchase o a replacement pickup truck for the public works department 

 

e.   Ordinance 15-10, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 13, Public Services, 

and adding Chapter 32 – General provisions for drilling water wells, to update ordinance, and establish 

process for permitting the installation of water wells 

 

13.    Council Comments 

 

14.    Adjournment 

 

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing impaired 

individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours’ notice to arrange for this service.  All such requests are 

subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are 

available for listening or duplication at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday 

through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or can be purchased for $10.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is 

located in City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 18, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   1 
Minutes 

May 18, 2015 

 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, May 18, 2015 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, May 18, 2015 to order at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Ms. Holm       

Ms. Hunter        

Mr. McCarthy           

Mr. McGhee       

Mr. Smith       

Mr. Welch         

Mayor Ward  

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regularly scheduled meeting of the North Pole City Council to order on 

Monday, May 18, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Led by Mayor Ward 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Mr. Smith 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Agenda of May 18, 2015 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch  

 

Discussion  

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to amend the agenda to consent under New Business as follows: 

a.   Contract amendment with Stantec (formerly USKA, Inc.) for feasibility engineering for 

alternative treated wastewater discharge options in response to “Notice of Violation”. 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 18, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   2 
Minutes 

May 18, 2015 

 

 

b. Ordinance 15-06, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 4, 

Revenue and Finance, Section 20.010, Sale of City Property. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

On the amendment 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 – McGhee, Holm, Welch, Smith, Hunter, McCarthy, Ward 

No:  0  

Absent:  0 

 

On the Agenda as Amended 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 – McGhee, Holm, Welch, Smith, Hunter, McCarthy, Ward 

No:  0  

Absent:  0 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. Welch moved to Approve the minutes of May 4, 2015.  

 

Seconded by Mr. McGhee 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 – McGhee, Holm, Welch, Smith, Hunter, McCarthy, Ward 

No:  0  

Absent:  0 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

 

 Student of the Month – NPHS, Katie Wagner 

 

 Presentation by Christine Nelson, FNSB Planning director, on zoning for marijuana 

producers, processors, and retailers. 

 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 18, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   3 
Minutes 

May 18, 2015 

 

 

Mayors Report 

We are seeking donations for the Trooper Park.  If you are interested in donating your time or 

resources please talk to me or Chief Dutra with the Police Dept.  We had a great contractor 

meeting today and look forward to starting work when the road/weight restrictions are lifted.   

 

The 4th of July Festival “A Patriots Christmas” is only 6 short weeks away.  If you are interested 

please contact me or Katy Englund for details.  Flint Hills Resources has graciously agreed to 

come on as title sponsor again this year. Thank You! 

 

May 29th through the 31st the North Pole Lions are hosting a “Circus in Town”, next to Mt. 

McKinley Bank. The times will be 4:30 pm and 7:00pm each day. Proceeds will go to the North 

Pole Lions.  The Lions are also hosting the Cruzin with Santa car show on the 30th of May.  

Hopefully we don’t have snow this year…  

 

May 19th is the North Pole High School graduation at the Carlson Center.  If you have a student 

or friend graduating please come join the celebration. 

 

Thank you to everyone who showed up last Wednesday to go over the healthcare renewal.  

Ordinance 15-07, which changes the health care contributions for employees, was distributed last 

Friday and will appear on the June 1st meeting for its initial hearing.   

 

I was asked to welcome the state VFW meeting in Fairbanks on the 8th of May and it was my 

pleasure to do so.  The state VFW is rooted in values and is a great organization for supporting 

the needs of our veterans and speaking as the voice of those who cannot be heard.   

 

Today we celebrate Arbor Day in the State of Alaska and it was my pleasure to plant two choke 

cherry trees with the three Interior mayors in the greenspace in Fairbanks.  Next year is the 50 

year anniversary of Arbor Day in Alaska and it would be great to plan to do tree planning in 

North Pole next year.   

 

Thursday is the PERS presentation if employees are interested in learning about Tier 4 and what 

the PERS retirement plan is all about. 

 

Friday at 5:30 pm is the Fairbanks Mayors Arts Awards held at the Centennial building at 

Pioneer Park.  This year was North Poles turn to purchase the awards and I chose to make them 

myself.  Please come support those members of our community that advocate for the arts.   

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

None 

 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 18, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   4 
Minutes 

May 18, 2015 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

Police Department, Chief Dutra 

 Lt. Rathbun is attending OSSI training.  RMS/CAD familiarization. 

 We had Memorial Park Meeting with contractors today.  Happy to announce Ron Rady 

with Rady Concrete, Rolie Miranda with Miranda Electric, Nils Degerlund with 

Degerlund Engineering, John Rowe with Design Alaska, and Glen Weber with Weber Inc 

all attended our Contractors meeting.  We are moving forward and I am excited to say 

these fine companies have all offered their services for free. 

 Nadine Winters has come forward and offered her assistance to work on fundraising.  If 

any of you know of people willing to help or donate please have them email me. 

We are truly blessed to have a group of people willing to support this endeavor.   

I want to thank Dorothy Chaiemz  at the Fairbanks Daily News Miner for her article on 

the park 

 The employees all pitched in and painted the EOC and scrubbed the floors.  We are 

currently working with Alasconnect to wire the EOC and NPPD with new cabling for our 

new fiber and internet.  We are also working on a camera quote for NPPD and possibly 

City Hall. 

 I am sorry to say that I will be arrested and have to report to jail on Thursday.  I really 

could use some help with my bail.  I would ask that each of you or your friends to 

consider donating to raise the $1600 I need to get out.  The funds go to a great cause to 

support the Muscular Dystrophy Association.  You can donate online or come down to 

Pikes Landing at 12:00 – 1:00 and donate to get me out. 

 I spent one day last week touring local LEO facilities, Alaska State Troopers, Fairbanks 

Police Department, Ft. Wainwright Police Department, Eielson Air Force Base SF, and 

North Pole Police Department.  Excellent time interacting and sharing capabilities, 

equipment, and learning how each agency functions. 

 Family friendly workplace award.  I want to thank Sgt. Dave Stevenson for nomination.  I 

am very grateful to have the people I do.  We won the category for public employer 1-25.  

I want to thank the borough and early childhood development for sponsoring this award.  

It is imperative that we support the family because it is truly at the core of why we do 

what we do. 

 Working on grant for new laptops.  DHS&EM for $82,000.   

 We’re starting our busy season and have some staff challenges. 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 18, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   5 
Minutes 

May 18, 2015 

 

 

Mr. Smith  

 

Mr. Welch asked when the EOC would be functional. 

 

Fire Department, Chief Lane 

   None 

 

 

Finance, Tricia Fogarty 

 None    

 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler  

Building Department 

 New permit application to install a MAC Federal Credit Union kiosk in the parking lot 

off Doughchee Road (adjacent to the coffee cart) 

 Approximately $750,000 of building projects to date 

 

Public Works 

 Major Summer Projects 

 Landscaping Santa Claus lane 

 Dog Park 

 Fitness trail 

 Road striping  

 Flower baskets on light poles (test) 

 Way finding signage and signage on Beaver Springs Trail 

 City Hall weather-damaged window replacement 

 Subsiding roads—small sink holes and depressions are appearing in roads around City—

if you notice any please contact me 

 FMATS 2014 repaving project scheduled to begin early June on the following roads: 

 3rd and 4th Avenues by the Elementary School 

 West 6th Avenue 

 Manley Street 

 Owens Street 

 Blanket Boulevard 

 FMATS 2015 repaving projects in the bid generation stage 

 Ouida Way 

 Road approaches on 5th & 8th Avenues 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 18, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   6 
Minutes 

May 18, 2015 

 

 

 

Utility Department 

 Professional service agreement for engineering response to Notice of Violation 

 High volume of utility location request for gas line construction 

 $2 million for lift station rehabilitation remains in 2016 Capital Budget awaiting transfer 

to Governor 

 

Natural Gas Utility Board 

 Installation of gas lines has begun 

 

Mr. McGhee asked what residents would be charged for natural gas and why wasn’t it decided to 

go up to the meter at the house. 

 

Mr. Butler said he talked with the project coordinator and they said it was a compromised 

approach as to what could be afforded.  

 

Mr. Smith asked about summer hires. 

 

Mr. Butler stated that all three positions have been filled. 

 

Mr. Smith asked about striping around North Pole. 

 

Mr. Butler said that the City would be striping around North Pole and DOT should be striping on 

Santa Claus Lane. 

 

Mr. Smith asked if Perimeter will be repaved. 

 

Mr. Butler said that it was  a City project and will be repaved. 

 

Ms. Hunter said that GVEA notified her that underground electrical will be put in between the 

railroad tracks and City Hall and if that would open a corridor for snow machiners. 

 

Mr. Butler said that it was an easement and he would look into seeing if it was a dedicated 

easement.  That is one of the prerogatives of the utility easements and you cannot block it. 

 

Borough Representative 

 The borough did increase the mil rate for education .43 mils per request of the FNSBSD. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 18, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   7 
Minutes 

May 18, 2015 

 

 

 

City Clerk, Kathy Weber 

 An Ordinance was drafted and sent out to employees last week on the employee and 
dependent contribution to health care.  That Ordinance will come before council on the 
June 1st meeting. 
 

 PERS Counselors will be here on Thursday, May 21st to meet with employees.  A 
workshop will be held from 10:30 – 11:30 am for Tier IV employees and anyone wishing 
to learn more.  Please contact me if you are interested in setting up an appointment. 

 
 

ONGOING PROJECTS 

None 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
Santa Claus, 350 S Santa Claus Lane 

Mr. Claus said that the new City website states “Live reindeer and an opportunity for a 

photograph with Santa Claus at the Santa Claus House are available year round.”  He requested 

that Santa Claus be removed and just the word “Santa” be used. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

RESOLUTION 15-11, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 

SUPPORTING THE PURCHASE OF PENTEX CORPORATION AS A CRITICAL STEP 

TO THE TIMELY ADVANCEMENT OF THE INTERIOR ENERGY PROJECT 

Mayor Ward said this is the same ordinance that is going before the FNSB and City of Fairbanks.  

Mr. Shefchik, a representative from AIDEA, gave a presentation on the Interior Energy Project 

that was presented on May 12, 2015 at the Town Hall Meeting. (See attached power point) 

 

Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve Resolution 15-11, a Resolution of the City of North Pole, 

Alaska supporting the purchase of Pentex Corporation as a critical step to the timely 

advancement of the Interior Energy Project 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 18, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   8 
Minutes 

May 18, 2015 

 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee and Mr. Welch asked to be added as sponsors to this ordinance.   

 

Ms. Holm said that she is not in support of this ordinance because of government bullying. 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to amend Resolution 15-11, to insert the wording between lines 14 – 15 

as follows: 

The expected sale of Titan/AET assets to Harvester Alaska with a 10 year supply agreement to 

Fairbanks Natural Gas (FNG) for $15 per mcf to Fairbanks, may not be in the best interest of 

the Interior Energy Project. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee agreed with Mayor Ward’s opinion on the amendment.  

 

Ms. Hunter asked for clarification on the amendment. 

 

PASSED 

Yes: 6 – McGhee, Welch, Hunter, Smith, McCarthy, Ward 

No:  1 - Holm 

Absent:  0 

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Smith – thanked everyone for a great evening and encouraged the public to be cautious of 

the construction on Hurst Rd.  He said it was good to see people utilizing the trails and parks 

in North Pole. 

 

Hunter – no comment 

 

Holm – no comment 

 

Welch – looking forward to Memorial Day weekend and Cruizin with Santa at the end of the 

month. 

 

McGhee – said it was summertime and new drivers are on the road.  He asked everyone to d 

drive defensively and set a good example for other drivers. 

 

McCarthy – the city is still looking for a rep from North Pole to sit on the Planning 

Commission.  He asked the council to recommend a friend or neighbor. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

May 18, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   9 
Minutes 

May 18, 2015 

 

 

 

Mayor Ward – the City does have a need for a rep to the planning commission and said we 

are still looking for someone to fill that position.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. McGhee adjourned the meeting at 9:30 p.m. 

 

Seconded by Ms. Hunter 

The regular meeting of May 18, 2015 adjourned at 9:30 p.m. 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, June 1, 2015.   

 

  

       ____________________________________ 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

  

                             

_________________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk       



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: May 18, 2015  

Possible Adoption: June 1, 2015   
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE 15-06 3 
 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO AMEND 5 

TITLE 4, CHAPTER 20, SECTION .010, SALE OF CITY PROPERTY 6 
  7 
WHEREAS, changes to the practices, regulations and policies is a continually changing 8 

requirement; and 9 

WHEREAS, The City of North Pole desires to dispose of surplus items of value; and 10 

WHEREAS, contracting with an auction house is an appropriate way to dispose of surplus city 11 

assets; and 12 

WHEREAS, auctions held by local auction experts are more likely to garner more participants 13 

than the traditional auction process of the City; and 14 

WHEREAS, auction houses have multiple auctions through the year that the city may be able to 15 

take advantage of for sale of surplus equipment; and 16 

WHEREAS, acquisition of an auction contractor shall be done per procurement processes in 17 

code; and 18 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 19 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 20 

Section 2. Title 4 Revenue and Finance, Chapter 20.010 Sale of City Assets is amended in the 21 

North Pole Code of Ordinances as by inserting the text italicized, underlined and in red:  22 

 23 

4.20.010 Sale of real and personal property.  24 

A. The City may sell, dispose or donate any City-owned real or personal property except 25 

where restricted by Section 13.4 of the Home Rule Charter, when in the judgment of the 26 

City Council it is no longer required for public use. 27 

B. Any item of City-owned property, determined by the City Council to be of value and no 28 

longer required for public use, shall be disposed of in accordance with the procedures 29 

outlined in this chapter. 30 

C. The City may acquire the services of an auction company to advertise and sell at auction 31 

items for disposal as approved by the City Council in accordance with the procedures 32 

outlined in this chapter.  33 

D. Public Sale, Lease or Disposition Procedure for City-Owned Property. 34 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: May 18, 2015  

Possible Adoption: June 1, 2015   
 

1. The administration shall prepare a list of items determined to be surplus to the 35 

needs of the City and present it to Council for determination of status and 36 

disposition procedures. The disposition procedures include time and date of sale, 37 

type of sale, minimum price if any and terms. 38 

2. The North Pole City Council may establish minimum bids for any item to be 39 

disposed of.  40 

3. The City Clerk auction contractor shall notify the City of any auction including City 41 

assets and advertise the sale in a newspaper of general circulation in the City at 42 

least fifteen days in advance of the date of the sale and post in at least three public 43 

places in the City. 44 

4. The administration shall present to Council a list of all items sold and the proceeds 45 

from the sale at the regularly scheduled meeting following the sale and remove any 46 

item from the City asset management list. 47 

5. The City Council may determine if it is in the best interest of the City to donate City 48 

property to other parties. Donation of City property shall be made by ordinance 49 

setting forth the items or real property, the terms and the party accepting the 50 

donation. (Ord. 94-7 § 2, 1994; Ord. 84-3 § 2-13, 1984) 51 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 pm on the first City 52 

business day following its adoption. 53 

 54 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 55 

1st day of June, 2015.  56 

 57 

 58 

        _____________________________ 59 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 60 

 61 

 62 

ATTEST: 63 

 64 

 65 

___________________________ 66 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 67 

North Pole City Clerk 68 

 69 

 70 

 71 

 72 

 73 

 74 

 75 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent: 

 









































Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: June 1, 2015 

Possible Adoption: June 15, 2015  
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE 15-07 3 
 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 5 

AMEND TITLE 2, PERSONNEL SYSTEM, CHAPTER 36, SECTION.480 6 

INSURANCE AND DISABILITY BENEFITS.   7 
  8 
WHEREAS, changes to the practices, regulations and policies is a continually changing 9 

requirement; and 10 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 11 

requirements of the City; and 12 

WHEREAS, The City of North Pole continues to see an increase in health care cost, reflective 13 

of the market; and 14 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes budgetary constraints and desires to make changes to 15 

the plan to continue to be able to offer health care coverage; and  16 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole desires to maintain grandfather status of our health care 17 

plan; and  18 

WHEREAS, requiring a 5% match on premiums from employees is a reasonable expectation; 19 

and  20 

WHEREAS, the City’s health care plan, even with proposed changes, is still a competitive plan 21 

when compared with other plans of like sized organizations.  22 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 23 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 24 

Section 2. Title 2 - Administration and Personnel, Chapter 2.36 - Personnel System, Section 25 

2.36.480 – Insurance and disability benefits, is amended in the North Pole Code of Ordinances as 26 

follows [new text in underlined italicized red font; deleted text in strikethrough font]: 27 

2.36.480 Insurance and disability benefits.  28 

A.    Medical and Hospital Insurance. The city shall make available employees’ health and life 29 

insurance for family members. All permanent employees and dependents, may at their option, 30 

participate in the city’s group health care and life insurance benefits programs. The city shall pay 31 

the employee’s and dependent’s monthly premium for the group health care program. Employees 32 

shall pay a $45 monthly premium for coverage, and a for $100 $175 monthly premium for 33 

dependent coverage. A Flexible Spending Account is available to those employees who wish to 34 

participate in the program. 35 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: June 1, 2015 

Possible Adoption: June 15, 2015  
 

 36 
Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 p.m. on the first City 37 

business day following its adoption. 38 

 39 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 40 

15th day of June, 2015.  41 

 42 

 43 

        _____________________________ 44 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 45 

 46 

 47 

ATTEST: 48 

 49 

 50 

___________________________ 51 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 52 

North Pole City Clerk 53 

 54 

 55 

 56 

 57 

 58 

 59 

 60 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent: 

 



Sponsored By:  Councilwoman Hunter 

Introduced & Advanced: June 1, 2015  

Possible Adoption:  June 15, 2015 

1 

 

 1 
CITY OF NORTH POLE 2 

ORDINANCE 15-08 3 
 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL INTRODUCING CHAPTER 5 
5.10 MARIJUANA, SECTION .010, PROHIBITING RETAIL SALES 6 

 7 
WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 8 
and 9 
 10 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 11 
requirements of the City and to provide clarification as needed; and 12 
 13 
WHEREAS, the voters of Alaska recently passed Ballot Measure 2, An Act to Tax and Regulate 14 
the Production, Sale, and Use of Marijuana, and which will be codified as Alaska Statute 17.38 et 15 
seq.; and 16 
 17 
WHERAS, Alaska Statute 17.38.110, “Local control,” in subsection (a) provides:  “A local 18 
government may prohibit the operation of marijuana cultivation facilities, marijuana product 19 
manufacturing facilities, marijuana testing facilities, or retail marijuana stores through the 20 
enactment of an ordinance or by a voter initiative.”; and 21 
 22 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Alaska Statute 17.38.070, “Lawful operation of marijuana-related 23 
facilities,” subsection (f) states:  “Northing in this section prevents the imposition of penalties 24 
upon marijuana establishments for violating this chapter or rules adopted by the board or local 25 
governments pursuant to this chapter”; and 26 
 27 
WHEREAS, Alaska Statute 17.38.110 “Local control,” provides for other avenues of local 28 
control and regulation, but which are dependent in large part on what actions the state takes in 29 
implementing the law; and 30 
 31 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Alaska Statute 17.38.090, “Rulemaking,” the state has 9 months in 32 
which to draft regulations relating to the operation of marijuana businesses.  Additionally, 33 
pursuant to Alaska Statute 17.38.100, “Marijuana establishment registrations,” the state has up to 34 
a year after the effective date of the law in which to begin accepting registrations for marijuana 35 
business licenses and an additional 90 days in which to actually issue the license; and 36 
 37 
WHEREAS, the personal use of marijuana as described in Alaska Statute 17.38.020 will not be 38 
affected by this ordinance; and 39 
 40 
WHEREAS, there are 4 public schools with a total enrollment of approximately 2,046 students 41 
and 4 daycare centers in 4.2 square miles; and 42 
 43 
WHEREAS, marijuana retail stores do not reflect our community values reflected in our motto 44 
“Where the spirit of Christmas lives year round”; and 45 
 46 
WHEREAS, the voters in the North Pole precinct rejected Ballot Measure 2; and 47 
 48 
WHEREAS, the increased cost in law enforcement may severely reduce or exceed the revenue 49 
from the marijuana sales tax. 50 
 51 



Sponsored By:  Councilwoman Hunter 

Introduced & Advanced: June 1, 2015  

Possible Adoption:  June 15, 2015 

2 

 

 52 
 53 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North Pole: 54 
 Section 1.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 55 
 Section 2.  Title 5 – Business Licenses, Taxes and Regulations, introducing Chapter 5.10, 56 
Section.010, Prohibition of marijuana retail sales as follows: 57 

CHAPTER 5.10 58 

 MARIJUANA 59 

Section 60 

5.10.010  Prohibiting retail sales 61 

A.     The operation of a retail marijuana store is prohibited in the city limits of the City of 62 

North Pole, Alaska. 63 

 64 

B.     “Retail marijuana store” means an entity registered to purchase marijuana from 65 

marijuana cultivation facilities, to purchase marijuana and marijuana products from marijuana 66 

product manufacturing facilities, and to sell marijuana and marijuana products to consumers. 67 

 68 

C.  Any violation of this section is an infraction and subject to a fine of  $________.  Each day 69 

that a violation exists or continues shall be a separate infraction. 70 
 71 
Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 pm on the first City business 72 
day following its adoption. 73 
 74 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City  75 
Council this 15th day of June, 2015. 76 
 77 
 78 

______________________________ 79 
Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 80 

 81 
 82 
 83 
 84 
ATTEST: 85 
 86 
 87 
_______________________________ 88 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 89 
North Pole City Clerk 90 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent: 



03-l 30 Badger No. I
03-135 Chena Lakes
03-165 Newby
03-175 North Pole
03-183 Plack
Disrict 3 - Absentee
Distict 3 -

2908
2521
3050
1606
2598

0
0
0

1030
991

tt52
527
9s4
606
235
541

539
456
557

239
473
288
146
a'|8

491
5l:
59:
28Í
481

3lt
8l

261District 3

ürisdiction Wide

Question
Edv Votins

.g
a

Ò¡o
¿.

Ballot Measure 2 - I3PSUM

o
a

ah
ØÐ oz

2908
2521
3050
r606
2s98

0
0
0

103 l
989

I l5r
529
95s
ó0s
236
547

ó38
585
ó69
339
559
363
t66
14R

393
{4
482
l9c
39(
242

1C
tsq

e

o0
o

Ballot Measu¡e 3 - l3MlNV/

o

G
oÊ

r! o
7

State of Alaska - 20t4 General Election
November 4,2014

Offrcial Results

Date:Il/24114
Time:13:03:12

.Page:4 of 6



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced: June 1,2015

Possible Adoption: June 15,2015

ORDINANCE NO. 15-09

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO
AMEND THE 2015 BUDGET TO AUTHORIZE PURCHASE OF A
REPLACEMENT PICKUP TRUCK FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS

DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing
requirement; and

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the
requirements of the City, and

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has an aging 1995 pickup truck that has recurring
maintenance cost and is increasingly becoming a safety issue, and

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has a current balance of $12,247.49 in the Public
Works Fleet Fund and will receive an additional $9,675.00 transfer to its fleet funds in2015, and

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department is transferring ownership of its 1995 Skid Steer
Loader to the Utility Department for $7,500.00 and this $7,500.00 will be added to the Public
Works Department's Vehicle Fleet Fund.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED the Council of the City of North Pole approves the
purchase of a Ford F350 4x4 Regular Cab pickup truck and options for a total of $27,400.00
using the State of Alaska Department of Administrative Services Vehicle State Contracts for use

by Political Subdivisions Invitation to Bid.

Section 1. This ordinance is of a special nature and shall not be included in the North Pole Code
of Ordinances.

Section 2. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 PM on the first City
business day following adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quomm of the North Pole City Council this
15th day of June, 2015.

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk



City of North Pole, Alaska

Fiscal Note Year: zors

Accompanying Ordinance/Resolution #: Ord 15-09 Purchase Pickup for Public Works

Originator /,Sponsor Name: Bill Butler

Date: 5-26-15

Does the Ordinance or Resolution have a fiscal impact? Ø y.t no

Summary: (Brief description of proposed alterations as defined by accompanying
ordinance or resolution. Where did the money come from and how will it be used)

This fiscal note requires budget authority to spend up to $29,602.29 from the Public
Works Vehicle Fleet Fund 53-00-00-7001 for a replacement pickup truck for The
Public Works Department

Prepared By

Finance App

Date:5-26-15

:.-€'z/-1f
NOTE- Fiscal notes attached to an ordinance are considered amendments to the budget and do
not require an additional approval for insertion into the budget document.

¡ William Butler

\

Fund- Dept.

Title
Account Description Account # Debit Credit

55 Transfer to Retained Earnings 55-00-00-7091 7,500

55 Transfer to Fund 53 (bobcat purchase) 55-00-00-7091 7,500

53 Transfer in 53-00-00-5900 19,927.29

53 Vehicle Expense 53-00-00-7001 29,602.29

53 Transfer to Retained Earnings 53-00-00-7901 9,675



Memo

125 SnowmanLane
NorthPole, Alaska
9970s (907)488-
8s93
(907) 488-3002 (fax)
bill@northpolealaska. com

To:

From:

Date:

Subject:

North Pole CityCouncil

Bill Butler

May27,2015

Purchase a pickup truck using the State of Alaska invitation to bid

Recommendation
Purchase a one-ton regular cab 4x4 pickup truck for the Public Works Department using the

State of Alaska contract resulting from an invitation to bid (ITB). The recommendation includes

the purchase and installation of a snowplow that is not part of the State contract.

¡ State bid price ......$25,585

o Added equipment. $ 1,815

Background
The new pickup truck Public Works is requesting to purchase will replace the 1995 Chevrolet

pickup truck that has a failing transmission; failing door locks; exhaust system problems plus a

host of other problems. The most recent estimate of needed work for this vehicle is $5,400.(See

attached maintenance schedule.) This would be a large investment in an aging vehicle that is

likely to have ongoing significant maintenance costs. In addition, Public Works' sanding truck

requires over $3,000 for new tires and wheels to ensure it continues to operate safely. The

combined maintenance for the 1995 pickup truck and the sanding truck would make the Public

Works Vehicle Maintenance budget line negative and it is still only the 5th month of the year.

The new vehicle is a one-ton regular cab 4x4 pickup truck. The 1995 pickup truck has very

limited hauling and towing capabilities and cannot be used for snow plowing. The new larger

vehicle will enable Public Works do more work more efficiently. The Department also hopes to

add a snowplow to the pickup truck at a later date to make Public Works more effective at snow

removal.

City ofNorth Pole
Director of City Services

The attached spreadsheet generated by the State of Alaska Division of General Services



procurement website documents the base bid price and price of requested options. The options

include the following important equipment: hands free communication; backup camera that is an

important safety feature; trailer brakes controller to increase the utility of the vehicle; auto start;

low-temperature coolant; and delivery charges to Fairbanks.

Funds for the purchase of the new pickup truck will come from the following and are included in
the fiscal note.

o Current balance Public Works Fleet fund. .....512,427.49 '
o 2015 Public Works Fleet allocationr........... .....$9,675.00 '
o Transfer of skid steer loader to Utility Department ................$7,500

¡ Total available funds........ ............$291602.49

t If the purchase is approved, the Public Works Fleet Fund will be negative until the annual $9,675 allocation occurs
at the end ofthe budget year



CLASS 162
REGULAR CAB SRW

1 TON 4X4

Worthington Ford

Ray Marcum

1 Unga Street

, Alaska

Phone:793-8213
Fax: 793-8255

Model: F350 XL
Model: F3B

Enqine:

$25,585.00
Ford

$ 535.00

$ 452.00

$ 230.00

$ 166.00

$ 75 00

$ 357.00

USE CLASS 163 IF DUAL REAR WHEELS

Standard Class 162RC I Ton Gab 4x4

OEM White (Any other color requires prior authorization)
Darkest of OEM Manufactures Standard Cloth Upholstery lnterior, (cloth or

with vinyl trim)

for three (3) including driver

Bed (Long Box)

9,900 Pounds

Four Wheel Drive (4x4)

Engine: Gas V8

Split Bench Cloth Front Seat
Rubberized Vinyl Flooring

Cond¡tioning

Control/Tilt Wheel

Power Windows/Power Door Locks
Keyless Remote Entry w/ 2 Fobs

Mirrors: Outside - Trailer Tow Power/Heated mirrors left and right, driver adj

Up-Fitter Sw¡tches

Plow Prep Package

in Bed Liner

Trailer Hitch

1=yes

0=no
$ 29,607.00 $ 27,400.00 $ 32,951.00

Don't Purchase Purchase Don't Purchase

Replacing Vehicle:

Alaska Sales & Service

Contact: Richard Dixon

I 300 East 5th Avenue

Anchorage, Alaska 99501

Phone: 265-7535

Fax:265-7507

Model: Silverado 1WT

cK35903

Enqine: 6.0 V-8

$28,258.00

Chevrolet

$ 375.00

$ 200.00

Standard

$ 399.00

$ 80.00

$ 295.00

Model: Ram 2500

Model: DJ7L62

Enqine: 6.4 V-8

$30,966.00

Chrvsler/Dodqe

$ 855 00

$ 200.00

$ 230.00

Not Available

$ r00.00

$ 600.00

Calvin Towns
1 E.5th Avenue

Alaska 99501

907-276-1331
907-276-4191

Chrysler

AVAILABLE OPTIONS

Turbo Diesel Enoine in lieu of qas enqine
Cloth Bucket Seats with Console $ee Dealer Notes)

OEM Stereo with CD and Hands Free Communication System

OEM Backup Camera system

OEM Trailer Brake Controller
Privacv Glass

OEM or Dealer lnstalled Auto Start
Anti-Freeze-Lonq Life Coolant to a minimum -50 deqree protection

to Fairbanks

Shipping to Juneau(See Dealer Notes for Non State of Alaska Purchases

NOTES

0
0
1

1

1

0

1

1

1

0

ITI



EXPRESSWAY AUTO INC
3088 KRIS KRINGLE DR
North Pole, AK. 99705
Phone: 907-488-6057 Fax: 907-488-5363
HAVE YOUR CAR FIXED THE RIGHT WAY AT EXPI

Sub Estimate

Estimate Date : 512212015Estimate for Services
Gity of north pole

CELLULAR: 907 -388-7002 HOME: 907 -488-2281

1995 Chevrolet - Pickup K1500 - 4.31,V6 (262C1) VIN(Z)
Lic # : XXu490 - AK Odometer ln: 0

VIN # : 1GCEK14Z0 52240162
Part Descriptlon I Number

Shock Absorber - Sensa-Trac - Front

37130

Shop Supplies

Qty Sale

2.OO 91.48 182.96

3.96

SHOCK &/OR STRUTASSEMBLY - Remove &
lnstall or Remove & Replace - IDOES NOT
include disassemble or alignment where
applicable.l - K1500 - Both
Hazardous Materials

3â 9? " ø3 F",

4,{qoo n/*-/ - l**
/J"^-.- pI 

" 
r--Ê.

Hours Extended

1.00 99.00

7.32

Afí rJ ) LoÐY

h ,\.; ¡, ¿ ,' z
Parts/Supplies: 186.92 Labor: 99.00 Total: $ 293.24

HAVE AWONDERFUL DAY
I HEREBYAUTHORIZE THEABOVE REPAIR WORK TO BE DONE ALONG WTH THE NECESSARY MATERIALAND HEREBY GRANTYOU AND/OR YOUR EMPLOYEES
PERMISSION TO OPERATE THE VEHICLE FOR PURPOSES OF TESTING AND INSPECTION. AN EXPRESS MECHANICS LIEN IS HEREBYACKNOWLEDGED ON ABOVE
VEHICLE TO SECURE THE AMOUNT OF REPAIRS THERETO. SHOP SUPPLIES MAY INCLUDE CLEANERS, DEGREASERS, LUBRICANTS, WASTE DISPOSAL, SANDING
DISCS AND MISC. HARDWARE. ONCE THE VEHICLE REPAIRS ARE COMPLETE THE CUSTOMER IS REQUIRED TO PAY FOR AND PICK UP THE VEHICLE BY THE END OF
BUSINESS ON THE 3RD DAY. IF THE VEHICLE IS NOT PAID FOR AND PICKED UP AS REQUIRED, THE VEHICLE WILL BE SUBJECT TO A S2O.OO PER DAY STORAGE FEE,
NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO CARS ORARTICLES LEFT IN CARS IN CASE OF FIRE, THEFT ORANY OTHER CAUSE

Signature ïme

ö

JESSICA, EICKERMANN Page 1 of I

Date

Copyright (c) 20'1 5 M¡tchell Repair lnformat¡on Company, LLC esthrs 09 09 1.UD



EXPRESSWAY AUTO INC
3088 KRIS KRINGLE DR
North Pole, AK. 99705
Phone: 907-488-6057 Fax: 907-488-5363
HAVE YOUR CAR FIXED THE RIGHTWAY AT EXPI

Sub Estimate

Estimate Date : 512212015Estimate for Services
City of north pole

CELLULAR: 907-388-7002 HOME: 907-488-2281

1995 Chevrolet - Pickup K1500 - 4.3L,VO (262C1) VIN(Z)
Lic # : XXU490 - AK Odometer ln: 0

VIN # : 1GCEK14Z0 52240162
Part Description /

A./Trans Filter Kit

17589
AUTOMATIC TRANN\SMISSION FLUID

ATF
brake fluid

7005699

Shop Supplies

Qty Sale Ext Labor Description ours

TRANSMISSION OIL PAN GASKET &/OR 1.OO 99.00
FILTER - Remove & Replace - w/Skid Plate
Brake fluid flush 1.00 97.00

Check brake fluid for moisture and contaminatíon. lnspect all
hydraulic line and hoses. lnspect calipers and wheel cylinders.
lnspect master cylinder and cap. Flush entire brake system
including master cylinder, calipers, wheel cylinders until clean.

Hazardous Materials 3]3

1.00 39.64 39.64

6.00 7.25 43.50

1 .00 10.00 10.00

7.84

Parts/Supplies: 100.98 Labor: 196.00 Total: $ 300.71

HAVE AWONDERFUL DAY
I HEREBY AUTHORIZE THE ABOVE REPAIR WORK TO BE DONE ALONG WTH THE NECESSARY MATERIAL AND HEREBY GRANT YOU AND/OR YOUR EMPLOYEES
PERMISSION TO OPERATE THE VEHICLE FOR PURPOSES OF TESTING AND INSPECTION AN EXPRESS MECHANICS LIEN IS HEREBYACKNOWLEDGED ON ABOVE
VEHICLE TO SECURE THEAMOUNT OF REPAIRS THERETO, SHOP SUPPLIES MAY INCLUDE CLEANERS, DEGREASERS, LUBRICANTS, WASTE DISPOSAL, SANDING
DISCS AND MISC. HARDWARE. ONCE THE VEHICLE REPAIRS ARE COMPLETE THE CUSTOMER IS REQUIRED TO PAY FOR AND PICK UP THE VEHICLE BY THE END OF
BUSINESS ON THE 3RD DAY. IF THE VEHICLE IS NOT PAID FOR AND PICKED UP AS REQUIRED, THE VEHICLE WLL BE SUBJECT TO A $2O.OO PER DAY STORAGE FEE.
NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO CARS ORARTICLES LEFT IN CARS IN CASE OF FIRE, THEFT ORANY OTHER CAUSE.

Signature

JESSICA, EICKERMANN Page 1 of 1 Copyright (c) 201 5 Mitchell Repair lnformation Company, LLC esthrs 09.09 1 4JD



EXPRESSWAY AUTO INC
3088 KRIS KRINGLE DR

North Pole, AK. 99705
Phone: 907-488-6057 Fax: 907-488-5363

HAVE YOUR CAR FIXED THE RIGHT WAY AT EXPI

Sub Estimate

Estimate Date : 512212015Estimate for Services
Gity of north pole

CELLULAR: 907-388-7002 HOME: 907-488-2281

1995 Chevrolet - Pickup K1500 - 4.31,V6 (262C1) VIN(Z)
Lic # : XXU490 - AK Odometer ln: 0

VIN # : 1GCEK14Z0 52'240162
Part Desc on

Timing Cover Gasket Set
TC545121

Shop Supplies

1.00 29.36 29.36

8.96

CRANKSHAFT OIL SEAL - Remove & Replace
- V6,4WD Front
(Additionat) - CRANKSHAFT OIL SEAL -
Remove & Replace V8 Where Engine Oil
Cooler interferes add
(Additionat) - CRANKSHAFT OIL SEAL -
Remove & Replace Where Air Cond interferes
add
(Additionat) - CRANKSHAFT OIL SEAL-
Remove & Replace Where Air Pump interferes
add
(Additionat) - CRANKSHAFT OIL SEAL-
Remove & Replace Where Pwr Strg interferes
add
Hazardous Materials

1.32

0.22

0.33

0.22

0.22

128.04

21.34

32.01

21.34

21.34

1.17

Parts/Supplies: 38.32 Labo¡:224.07 Total : $ 263.56

HAVE AWONDERFULDAY
I HEREBYAUTHORIZE THEABOVE REPAIR WORK TO BE DONEALONG WTH THE NECESSARY MATERIALAND HEREBY GRANT YOU AND/OR YOUR EMPLOYEES
PERMISSION TO OPERATE THE VEHICLE FOR PURPOSES OF TESTING AND INSPECTION AN EXPRESS MECHANICS LIEN IS HEREBYACKNOWLEDGED ON ABOVE
VEHICLE TO SECURE THE AMOUNT OF REPAIRS THERETO. SHOP SUPPLIES MAY INCLUDE CLEANERS, DEGREASERS, LUBRICANTS, WASTE DISPOSAL, SANDING
DISCSANDMISC HARDWARE, ONCETHEVEHICLEREPAIRSARECOMPLETETHECUSTOMERISREQUIREDTOPAYFORANDPICKUPTHEVEHICLEBYTHEENDOF
BUSINESS ON THE 3RD DAY. IF THE VEHICLE IS NOT PAID FOR AND PICKED UP AS REQUIRED, THE VEHICLE WLL BE SUBJECT TO A $2O.OO PER DAY STORAGE FEE.

NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO CARS ORARTICLES LEFT IN CARS IN CASE OF FIRE, THEFT ORANY OTHER CAUSE

ïmeSignature

Page I of 1

Date

Copyr¡ght (c) 201 5 M¡tchell Repair lnformat¡on Company, LLC esthrs 09 09 1 4JO



EXPRESSWAY AUTO INC
3088 KRIS KRINGLE DR

North Pole, AK. 99705
Phone: 907-488-6057 Fax: 907-488-5363

HAVE YOUR CAR FIXED THE RIGHT WAY AT EXPI

Sub Estimate

Estimate Ðate : 512212015Estimate for Services
Gity of north pole

CELLULAR: 907-388-7002 HOME: 907-488-2281

1995 Chevrolet - Pickup K1500 - 4.31,V6 (262C1) VIN(Z)
Lic # : XXU490 - AK Odometer ln: 0

VIN #: 1GCEK14Z0 52240162
Part Description I Number

ldlerArm Assy
2683691

Pitman Arm Assy

1 901 21

Tie Rod End - Outer
E52836

Shop Supplies

Qty Sale Ext Labor Description

1.00 191.30 191.30

43.53

41.65

18.99

1.00 43.53

1.00 41.65

IDLER ARM - Remove & Replace - K1500 - 1.21

IDOES NOT include alignment.l
(Additionat) - IDLERARM - Remove & Replace 0.22
\lr/here Skid Plate interferes add
PITMAN ARM - Remove & Replace - K1500 - 1.65
IDOES NOT include alignment.l
TIE ROD END - Remove & Replace - One - 0.99
Includes: Adjust toe-in on all models.
DOES NOT include R&l Rack & Pinion gear.
NOTE: Manufacturer recommends removal of
rack & pinion steering gear when replacing
inner tie rod ends on some models. lf removal
of ra
ALTGNMENT SERVTCE(W|TH FACTORY 1.20
ADJUSTMENTS)

ALIGNMENT SERVICE(WITH FACTORY ADJUSTMENTS)

Hazardous Materials

117.37

21.34

160.05

96.03

80.00

11.06

Parts/Supplies:295.47 Labor: 474.79 Total: $ 781.32

HAVE AWONDERFUL DAY
I HEREBYAUTHORIZE THEABOVE REPAIR WORK TO BE DONEALONG WTH THE NECESSARY MATERIALAND HEREBY GRANTYOU AND/OR YOUR EMPLOYEES

PERMISSION TO OPERATE THE VEHICLE FOR PURPOSES OF TESTING AND INSPECTION. AN EXPRESS MECHANICS LIEN IS HEREBYACKNOWLEDGED ON ABOVE
VEHICLE TO SECURE THE AMOUNT OF REPAIRS THERETO SHOP SUPPLIES MAY INCLUDE CLEANERS, DEGREASERS, LUBRICANTS, WASTE DISPOSAL, SANDING
DISCS AND MISC. HARDWARE. ONCE THE VEHICLE REPAIRS ARE COMPLETE THE CUSTOMER IS REQUIRED TO PAY FOR AND PICK UP THE VEHICLE BY THE END OF
BUSINESS ON THE 3RD DAY, IF THE VEHICLE IS NOT PAID FOR AND PICKED UP AS REQUIRED, THE VEHICLE WLL BE SUBJECT TO A O2O.OO PER DAY STORAGE FEE.

NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO CARS ORARTICLES LEFT IN CARS IN CASE OF FIRE, THEFT ORANY OTHER CAUSE

ïmeSignature

Page 1 of 1 Copyright (c) 201 5 M¡tchell Repair lnformation Company, LLC esthrs 09 09 1 4JD



EXPRESSWAY AUTO INC
3088 KRIS KRINGLE DR

North Pole, AK. 99705
Phone: 907-488-6057 Fax: 907-488-5363

HAVE YOUR CAR FIXED THE RIGHT WAY AT EXPI

Sub Estimate

Estimate Dale : 512212015Estimate for Services
City of north pole

CELLULAR: 907-388-7002 HOME: 907-488-2281

1995 Chevrolet - Pickup K1500 - 4.31,V6 (262C1) VIN(Z)
Lic # : XXU490 - AK Odometer ln: 0

VIN # : 1GCEK14Z0 5.2240162

Part

OIL FILTER

OF

otL
OIL

Shop Supplies

ale Ext Labor Description Hours Extended

1.00 2.25 2.25 STANDARD OIL CHANGE O.3O 32.10

LOF

Tire Rotation M brake inspection 0.30 0.00

COURTESY CHECK O.1O O.OO

BELT HOSES FLUIDS TIRE PRESSURE AIR FILTER CHECK

Hazardous Materials 0.97

8.00 2.75 22.00

1.28

Parts/Supplies: 25.53 Labor:32.10 Total: $ 58.60

HAVE AWONDERFULDAY
I HEREBY AUTHORIZE THE ABOVE REPAIR WORK TO BE DONE ALONG WTH THE NECESSARY MATERIALAND HEREBY GRANTYOU AND/OR YOUR EMPLOYEES

PERMISSION TO OPERATE THE VEHICLE FOR PURPOSES OF TESTING AND INSPECTION. AN EXPRESS MECHANICS LIEN IS HEREBYACKNOWLEDGED ON ABOVE
VEHICLE TO SECURE THE AMOUNT OF REPAIRS THERETO. SHOP SUPPLIES MAY INCLUDE CLEANERS, DEGREASERS, LUBRICANTS, WASTE DISPOSAL, SANDING
DISCS AND MISC. HARDWARE. ONCE THE VEHICLE REPAIRS ARE COMPLETE THE CUSTOMER IS REQUIRED TO PAY FOR AND PICK UP THE VEHICLE BY THE END OF
BUSINESS ON THE 3RD DAY. IF THE VEHICLE IS NOT PAID FORAND PICKED UPAS REQUIRED, THE VEHICLE WLL BE SUBJECTTOA$2O.OO PER DAY STORAGE FEE.

NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE TO CARS OR ARTICLES LEFT IN CARS IN CASE OF FIRE, THEFT ORANY OTHER CAUSE.

Signature

Page 1 of 1 Copyr¡ght (c) 201 5 M¡tchell Repair lnformat¡on Company, LLC esthrs 09 09 1 ¿UD



MIDAS FAIRBANKS
3449 AIRPORT WAY
FAIRBANKS,AK
(907)479-6262
Tax Number: 20-2395147

Year: 95
Make: CHEVROLET
Model: K10/1500 PICKUP
Lic No: XXU490
VIN: 1 GCEKl 42052240162
Color: RED
Engine: 4 3 6/95
Mileage ln: 0

Mileage Out: 0

List Labor Total

PAGE 1

("

Customer lD: 1645001243
Name: CITY OF NORTH POLE
Address: 125 SNOWMAN LN
Address 2: MIKE LEWIS
City,State,ZiplPostal Code: NORTH POLE, AK, 99705
Home Phone: (907) 488-2281
Work Phone: 0 -
Other Phone: (907) 388-7002
Tax Exempt #:

Service comments

DateÆime:
Estimate #:
lnvoice #:
Key Tag:
PQ Number:
EmailAddress:
Fleet/Wholesale:
Unit Number:

05/06/15 10:11:00
I 1 2080

N

Reason: RETURN CUSTOMER

Qtv. Paft # RFR Loc Description

1

2
1

1

1

2

BRAKE

DIAGNOSIS
1Bl
1 MMI

HDWLBR RA F INSTALL & LUBE HARDWA
48880438 RB - F BRAKE ROTOR
SS7259BM RA F BRAKE PAD

TOTAL FRONT BRAKES: 322.64

T5675 RA B RMFG BRAKE SHOE
2248 RA B DRUM BRAKE MAXI-PACK
44O14BO RB - B BRAKE DRUM

TOTAL REAR BRAKES: 37434
TOTAL BRAKE. 696 98

TOTAL WITHOUT SUGGESTED: 696 98

72 99
20 92
79 23

142.96
20 92

210 46

- WORK AUTHORIZATION -

This Estimate of Repairs is based upon our
inspection at this time and does not cover
additional parts and/or labor which may be
required after the work has been started. After
the work has been started, worn or damaged parts
which are not ev¡dent on first inspection may be
discovered This Estimate of Repairs cannot cover
such contingencies ln cases where additional
work is deemed necessary, customer authorization
will be secured prior to commencement of that
additional work Ihis Estìmate of Repairs expires
1 5 days from date
Have a great Day!
This shop is not responsible for unavailablility
of parts or delays in parts shipments beyond its
control nor for loss or damamge to vehicle or to
articles Ieft in vehicle in case of fire, theft,
or any other cause beyond our control

I hereby authorize the repairs shown on this
estimate to be done along with the necessary
material and hereby grant you and/or your
employees permission to operate the vehicle herein
describecl ¡n strÊets, highways, or elsewhere for
the purpose of testing and/or inspection. An
express mechanics lien is hereby granted on
above vehicle to secure the amount of repairs
thereto. I also acknowledge receipt of a copy of
this work auihorization and estimate of repairs-

I _ Do _ Do Not request
the return of parts replaced, excluding warranty
and exchange parts.

000
55 45
74 99

00
00

14 78
26 00
69 97

69 97
000

26 00

14 78
1 62.90
144 96

0
39 99
000

SHOP SUPPLIES
1 SHOP SUPPLY SUPPLY CHARGE

TOTAL SHOP SUPPLIES: 36 89
TOTAL WlTl IOUT SUGGESTED: 30 Bg

000 36 89

"** Customer Wishes To Discard Old Pads ***

RA REQUIRED - PART NO LONGER PERFORMS INTENDED PURPOSE
RB REQUIRED - PART DOES NOT MEET DESIGN SPECS (REGARDLESS OF PERFORMANCE)
52 SUGGESTED-TOADDRESS A CUSTOMER NEED, CONVENIENCE OR REQUEST

52 BRAKE INSPECTION
52 COURTESY CHECK
TOTAL DIAGNOSIS: 39 99

TOTAL WITHOUT SUGGESTED: 0 00

0 39 99
0.00

36 89

SUB TOÏAL
SALES TAX
GRAND TOTAL

773 86
000

773 86
TECH:

THIS IS AN ESTIMATE, NOT AN INVOICEI DO NOT MAKE ANY PAYMENTS FROM THIS PAPERWORKI



,! : ;g'fn4¿q"Wffi * #*Vd#Hffiffiffi

iYliîSKrr\'l'
T* ce c: m. *"i- c¡t"L

Knrç¿l
2Bô .$, WITLQW åTRÊÊ"f

rïfl7-rir#:t4s2"r

:r:k '*xeIc, g
Ê.n ,/!tt/. (-

i;IUUYJJ N' .I

tjtr. 2-

K-Hs¡q*H
}såi F{-+l i}Rtv{:
ûr.Ê60.4,Tfs

þ{*n¡nn
'¡3ül üürÀfi SfrruR

Êtr-*s$-8441

FRtr+gn¡¡ms
3?5$ Frçmn ftu¿s

$û?-¡î$$4ütr2

Pnll¡Et¡r
'I'Àõ{i E. $r:rt¡:¡"t¡; $¡'r¡¡¿

9ü7,-7ûT..1t]3f'

I

-Sc.lci T'p:

1:J{.STi CTJ$TI)}dER
lllHJlNKS F'OR YÐì;lfì ËtU$Tr f-l

I¡,ê.:ERBÄ-IiTKS , Jrlt 99"ì Qlt\

l{ileaEe*
vr¡q{l

Ftr

ACCOTJD'ÍÍif : 5555,555

Ð.ërTF':l ; 05,/l-9r,/:15

ÇrJOT.ËrÍIüN S : .-?.år)56üä

r<:p#

BíIJ-ecl Byr S"A.LE$ COUNTER'-ST+å:ì
Salesrnan : 9#: Rt :

Tx:Y fiX#: Cf. lR {.10Ð: I}ir$r
ParkirrE $paue.tt:

BIN#TC Ì'tC ltP

15
1T
1J

Quat tÍty
átì
4.C

4.0

Prari';ct #

3524T0

412 63

44263

IIRU nïSPl]$ft

STA'Tä

$i.rer Ì+s

44': t

f iri:' ,ri¡
r'0 i : :e,l
U Li. 31iùÀ\L;

lÅ,1

Lhit
Ë::ice

t5i,95
3, i5

i5, û0

fixrsrrried

I+trottil'.

l0i1, ijú

.i:r . t Ll

bjJ, ï(l

FÏ] ry

IÏIRT ÀT2

iM/TPMS

ÀTJAI{CE

is are that, tires be

lea 
"

[.EE

fil(
L 3, i5

2,50

:ir C0

iil ilU

[l

1l

4U
40

t(j
't(l

F. U, T,

0,00

Serrlí'r s,1 0'
85

Cc,mments I Te;lns

R+ce+ír¡t¡rl $rl:

urc¡r¡l.rl .l.i.kel to tlhan.i, yo
t¡.j-bït ur¡reta.tr:J:a'i. sæ

ïrlhY[ry

DUH I)PITE Al{T, DUI: lfisc, ådj
f;ash or Check f:
tredi.t ilncd" :

$

$

$

{j

I
fl

{< IrarTe 1- of l. >>

l-n'æekn ÍierJ"es & Servi-ce
r>ur pa,t,r<rrÌër,çie " W,rl ar:tl ¿::*rnm:i.f,ec[ ko glr:ov.'!.c*,,i,rrçg yr>u
*d. prclduebs " Check oub our new weþ såte ab
.ab:-re, eÊrn. Fneasel fl$rÈìê Ägain !

Bal.ance i; i I r 31 0(



oooojÍ?nan
V¡NùFOOTCOM¡ERCIÀLIRÉsYSEMs I ICdbñ

GOODYEAR COMMERCTAL TIRE
3743 S CUSHMAN ST

FAIRBANKS, AK 99701
907 -479-3399 Fax 907 -419-2885

QUOTE NO.

---180-1045505---

***
*** 'RICE 

ESTII'ATE *** eUOTE

'RICE 
ESTII4ÀTE *** eUOTE

***
***

***
***

DO NOT PAY!
DO NOT PAY!

L28997-0001
CTTY OF NORTH POLE
125 SNOT/IMAN LN
NORTH POLE, AK 99705
907 -488 -228r

PAGE 01
QUOTE DATE t05/0s/20a5
PICKED UP AT SHOP

r,ocarlorq/sREP : re o /Hsn
APPROVAL NUM : G0003903
20L5-05-05 13.25.38 RGH

CLERK; *** TECH: ***

DESCRIPTION

753P007 GY 11R22.5 G338 201,5T 27
5O4O22A MED/HVY TRK T¡THEEL/RIM

22.5X8.25 1oHOLE HP STL hIHLS

r3'tr925 DU 1l-R22.5 SP384 FM TL 16
5O4O].41 M&D-MRT_OUTSIDE
5O4L27I METAL VA],VE STEM

1340
150

00
00

350. B7

37.91
9 .9'l

t4
B2

B2

, FET UNIT PRICE AIVIOUNT

*** NOT A SAI,ES/DELIVERY DOCUMENT, ESTIMATE FOR PRICING ONLY
*** PRICE EXP]RÄTION DATE|. 2015-06-04 ***

4

6

)
6

6

335.00
125.00

0.00* 701
221

59

Tire Industry Association (TIA) recommends re-torque aL 50-100 miLes

D sposal fees may apply in some areas.

supply fees cover miscellaneous materials used in servj-cing your
Ie that do not appear elsewhere on this invoice and for profit.

Ð* ^ p -/í*LL

TERMS: SHOP SUPPLIES FEE 20.25
suB_ToTAL 3, 099.63
SALESTAX (0-00)
TOTAL AMOUNT 3 ,099 .63

Nofurtherdiscountsallowed. ltisagreedthattitletotheabovedescr¡bedpropertyshallrema¡ninthenameoftheselleruntilpa¡dforinfull,
and that upon defeult in payment, seller shall be ent¡tled to take possession thereof without notice to the purchaser

tf thetotat amountdue¡spa¡dinfull withinterms,noFINANCECHARcEw¡l¡ beincurredonthatamount; otheruise,aF|NANCECI-IARGE *t QUOTE - DO l\OT PAY!
will be computed on the previous bâlance after deducting payments and credit received during lhe current month The FINANCE

CHARGE is computed at a periodic rate of which ¡s an annual percentage rate of

Seller warrants that the t¡res are the s¡ze and tread design as stated above. SELLER MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, SPECIFICAL t Y St t L tsR MAKES

NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANy PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Seller's sole obligation to Buyer for defective tires shall be prorated refund of ine Lire's purchase

QUANTITY PRODUCT NO

returned goods musl be accompanied by this bill.

CUSTOMER COPY



Sponsored by: Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

Introduced and advanced: June 1, 2015 

Possible Adoption:  June 15, 2015 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 

ORDINANCE 15-10 2 

 3 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO AMEND TITLE 13, 4 

PUBLIC SERVICES, AND ADDING CHAPTER 32 – GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR 5 

DRILLING WATER WELLS, TO UPDATE ORDINANCE, AND ESTABLISH 6 

PROCESS FOR PERMITTING THE INSTALLATION OF WATER WELLS 7 
 8 

 9 

WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 10 

requirement; and 11 

 12 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 13 

requirements of the City. 14 

 15 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 16 

 17 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 18 

 19 

Section 2. Title 13 is amended in the North Pole Code of Ordinances as follows: 20 

 21 

13.32.010 General provisions for drilling water wells 22 
 23 

A. Compulsory connection to City of water utility. 24 

 25 

1. No water wells shall be permitted within the city limits for properties located within the 26 

sulfolane contaminated groundwater plume with a sulfolane level of 16 parts per billion 27 

(ppb) or greater or for properties projected to be within the plume with a sulfolane level 28 

of 16 parts per billion (ppb) or greater within the next 10 (ten) years. It is the 29 

responsibility of the land owner to submit substantiating documentation, establishing by a 30 

preponderance of the evidence, that the sulfolane plume will not contaminate a new water 31 

well.  32 

a.  Unless otherwise specified, all determinations under this section shall be 33 

made by the Mayor or his designee in writing, subject to an appeal, on the 34 

record, to the City Council of the City of North Pole.  Any appeal shall be 35 

filed with the City Clerk no later than 20 days after the written decision is 36 

mailed to the water well permit applicant at the address provided on the 37 

application. Then notice of appeal shall include all grounds for the appeal and 38 

any grounds for appeal not set forth in the notice of appeal shall be deemed 39 

waived.  40 

2. No residential water wells shall be permitted within the city limits when municipal water 41 

is available to the property as defined in A.3 below. 42 

3. Connection to North Pole Utilities water system shall be mandatory within a voter-43 

approved special assessment district or whenever the property has direct access to the 44 

municipal facilities and the structure on the property is within two hundred feet of the 45 



2 

 

municipal water facility. Also see North Pole Ordinance 13.12.090 Compulsory 46 

connection to City water and sewer utility. 47 

 48 

B. No person shall cause or permit the construction of a surface or subsurface water source for 49 

human consumption without holding a valid permit issued by the City in the name of the 50 

property owner for the specific property and construction proposed. The well drilling 51 

contractor shall have a copy of the valid permit at the site of the drilling operation.  52 

 53 

C. No person shall cause or allow the placement of any refuse, trash, waste, or contaminated or 54 

hazardous substance into any existing or abandoned well or domestic water source.  55 

D. No person shall cause or allow the construction of a domestic water source violating the laws 56 

or regulations of the state or the City.  57 

 58 

E. No person may cause the construction, installation or use of a cross connection between a 59 

domestic, active or decommissioned water well and the public water system.  60 

 61 

F. No person shall allow the waste of water by free-flowing wells, whether by surface discharge 62 

or into the lower strata underground, without putting it to beneficial use.  63 

 64 

13.32.020 Permitting of water wells 65 

 66 
A. Permit to drill.  67 

 68 

1. An application to drill a new or replacement well shall be submitted to the City by the 69 

property owner or his/her authorized agent prior to the commencement of drilling 70 

operations.  71 

2. A permit for domestic water source shall not be issued if there is no existing or permitted 72 

on-site wastewater disposal system or connection to public sewer service for the property 73 

available, scheduled and approved. A variance may be issued for non-drinking water 74 

wells constructed in accordance with the standards of this chapter; for example, 75 

landscaping, construction, water sampling, etc.  76 

3. A permit for a domestic residential water well shall expire one year from the date of 77 

issuance, but may be renewed for one additional year.  78 

 79 

B. Application. The application shall be on a form provided by the City and shall be signed by 80 

the property owner or property owner's agent attesting the well shall be sited, drilled and 81 

completed in accordance with standards and provisions of Alaska State Statutes and 82 

regulations.  83 

 84 

1. The applicant shall submit a site plan signed by the property owner or property owner's 85 

agent drawn on an 8½ by 11 inch sheet (or larger if necessary to comply with this 86 

chapter) to a scale not smaller than one inch to 50 feet. The site plan shall show the:  87 

a. Legal description of the lot or parcel; 88 

b. Location of the proposed well; 89 

c. Lot lines, roads, rights-of-way and easements on or adjacent to the lot; 90 

d. Location of all existing structures on the lot; 91 



3 

 

e. Measured distance to all existing water supply wells within 50 feet of the proposed 92 

well site and the approximate location of all wells within 200 feet on the subject and 93 

adjacent properties;  94 

f. All applicable protective well radii; and 95 

g. The location or proposed location of all components shown in Table A-I, and areas 96 

containing hazardous waste or other potential pollutants within 150 feet of the 97 

proposed well.  98 

 99 

C. Revocation, suspension and restriction of permits. The mayor or his designee may revoke, 100 

suspend, or otherwise restrict a permit, issued under this chapter upon any of the following 101 

grounds:  102 

1. Any false statements set forth in the application. 103 

2. Any violation of the express terms or provisions of the permit. 104 

3. The commission of any act or omission violating the requirements of chapter 13.32; or  105 

4. Failure to comply with state and federal regulations. 106 

 107 

13.32.030 General standards for water wells.  108 

 109 
A. Prohibited wells. Well pits are prohibited.  110 

 111 

B. Well location and minimum setbacks. The location of a well shall be at a site readily 112 

accessible year round for testing, repair or maintenance purposes. The minimum separation 113 

requirements between wells and other specified facilities or areas are listed in Table A1. 114 

Whenever there is a conflict between State and City minimum separation requirements, the 115 

most conservative standard shall apply to provide the greatest protection of public health and 116 

safety. 117 

 118 

TABLE A-1  119 

SEPARATION OF WELL FROM: MINIMUM SEPARATION DISTANCE IN FEET 

Property line 10 

Private sewer line 25 

Curtain drain 25 

Petroleum Hydrocarbon storage tank 25 

Sewer trunk line 75 

Any other source of potential contamination 75 

Holding tank 75 

Septic absorption field 100 

Sewer manhole or cleanout 100 

Septic tank 100 

Animal containment areas 50 

Manure/animal excreta storage areas 100 



4 

 

  120 

A. Well identification. All wells shall be labeled with a durable form of construction 121 

information upon completion or stamped upon the exposed well casing the following 122 

information:  123 

1. The name of the drilling contractor. 124 

2. The date the well was completed. 125 

3. Classification of well. 126 

4. The total depth of casing. 127 

 128 

B. Well logs. The well driller shall provide a well log to the City within 30 days of completion 129 

of the well. The well log shall include at least the following pertinent information:  130 

1. The property owner's name. 131 

2. The legal description and street address of the well. 132 

3. The name of the drilling contractor. 133 

4. The date the well was completed. 134 

5. Classification of well. 135 

6. The total depth of casing. 136 

7. Picture of the information attached or stamped upon the casing that clearly document the 137 

required information is affixed to the casing. 138 

 139 

13.32.040 Well driller certification requirements.  140 

 141 
A. It shall be a violation of City of North Pole Municipal Code for any person or company to 142 

engage in the business of drilling or deepening a water well unless the person or company 143 

holds a general or subcontractor's license issued by the State of Alaska and a City of North 144 

Pole Business License.  145 

 146 

13.32.050 Violations—Penalties. 147 
 148 

One or more remedies of this section may be used against violators of this chapter: 149 

 150 

Violation of the provisions of this chapter shall constitute an infraction. Upon first conviction for 151 

a violation of this chapter, A person shall be fined not more than two hundred fifty dollars. A 152 

person convicted for the second and succeeding violations, may be punished by a fine of not 153 

more than five hundred dollars. Each thirty days a violation continues shall be considered a 154 

separate offense. 155 

 156 

Any person affected may institute an action or proceeding to prevent, restrain, correct and/or 157 

abate the unlawful uses, conduct, business or acts prohibited by this chapter. 158 

 159 

Violations of this chapter on properties within the city limits, and which violations continue in 160 

excess of sixty days after notice to the owner or occupant of the property are declared a public 161 

nuisance and  may be ordered abated by the council. The designee shall report the cost to abate 162 

the violation to the council. After notice to the alleged violator and an opportunity to be heard, 163 

the council, by written order, shall determine the monetary amount, if any,  to be charged to 164 

abate the violation. The owners and occupants of the property shall be jointly and severally liable 165 



5 

 

to the city for the amount determined by the council as required to abate the nuisance and that 166 

amount shall be collectable against the violator(s) as a final judgment pursuant to Alaska 167 

law.(Ord. 72-10 §9, 1972) 168 

 169 
Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 pm on the first City business day 170 
following its adoption. 171 
 172 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 173 

15th day of June 2015.174 

 175 

 176 

        ____________________________ 177 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 178 

 179 

ATTEST: 180 

 181 

 182 

__________________________ 183 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 184 

North Pole City Clerk 185 


	AG-06-01-15
	Min-05-18-15
	Ord 15-06 title sale of city assets
	North Pole Strategic Plan Contract
	North Pole Strategic Plan_signed copy
	AB North Pole Business License 2015

	Ord 15-07 Amending Title 2 Administration & Personal Section 2.36.480 Insurance & Disability
	Ord 15-08 Introducing Chapter 5.10 Marijuana - Section 010 Prohibiting retail sales
	2014 Official Election Results
	Ord 15-09 Amend the 2015 Budget to authorize purchase of a replacment pU for PW
	Ord 15-10 Well permitting ordinance

